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Many generations of Barby people have 

passed through this door. 

 

This article describes the history of a 

village shop and its owners, the Walkers and   

the Smiths, two families linked by marriage  

and business in Barby, Northamptonshire,  

from 1890 to 1993. 

 

The story was told by Reg and Ivy Smith 

to Peter Start in 2003.1 

 

We start with the Whitney family,  

who originally came from Moulton  

near Northampton, and by 1890  

were living in one of a pair of  

cottages in Church Walk, Barby.  

Although only one door can be seen  

in this photograph, once inside, the 

cottage divided into two homes. 

 

Mrs Whitney was a member of the Adams family, bakers in Moulton, where it is almost certain  

that a Thomas Walker learnt the trade of baker.  Thomas, not being content with one trade, 

also became a wheelwright, possibly learning this trade in Moulton, too.  

 

Thomas’s wife-to-be, Elizabeth, originated from Thornborough in Buckinghamshire. She too  

had many skills at her disposal. 

 
1 The original document, in booklet form, has been modified slightly for this website version.  Reg & Ivy died in 2007 
and 2010 respectively.  Peter Start (1934- 2016) was a founder member of Barby Local History Group; he compiled 
the booklet for Reg & Ivy and gave the Group a copy. 



 

We next meet Thomas and Elizabeth as a married couple living in Guilsborough in 1890, still  

keeping their contacts with the Whitney/Adams family at Barby.  Through the grapevine 

Thomas and Elizabeth learned of a vacant cottage in Church Walk - the second of the pair.   

So sometime during 1890 Mr and Mrs Thomas Walker left Guilsborough by carrier’s cart  

along with their worldly goods, making their way to Barby to begin a new life.  (The 1891 

census gives Thomas’s age as 25 and Elizabeth’s as 29 years). 

 

Thomas seems to have quickly set up in business, for the 1890 Hopewell’s Rugby Almanac  

gives his occupation as a wheelwright in Barby.  The Arnold Arms Yard, known as the 

stables, was the site of his business.  By 1895 Thomas is described as a wheelwright and 

draper according to the Midland Times and Rugby Gazette.  This combination seems some- 

what unusual, but it appears to stem from Elizabeth’s emerging shopkeeping skills.  Her  

personal needs for sewing threads and bits and bobs extended to supplying the local village  

people.  A room in the house in Church Walk was where this business was conducted. 

 

This invoice of 1893 shows a much wider range of 

goods for sale, greatly extended fiom the earlier  

haberdashery items.  The increased range would  

suggest a need for more space for storage and  

display, and so, in 1895, Thomas and Elizabeth 

moved to a cottage on The Green.  Next door was 

a bakery and on the other side was the village  

Chapel.  Here they established their drapery  

business in a lean-to, formerly'occupied as a 

home. 

 

  

 



 

 

During this time there were three children born to 

 the couple: Eveline in 1892, Ralph in 1894 and  

Gladys in 1896.  In 1900 Thomas and Elizabeth  

bought their cottage for £25 fiom Theodore  

Wratislaw, Solicitors of Rugby. 

 

In the 1901 census, Thomas is listed as having a 

bakery with employees. The picture now  

emerges of.a family with three children busy with  

the bakery, the wheelwright’s and the shop. 

 

 

 

This invoice dated 1901 gives an interesting  

insight into the goods on sale.  Elizabeth later 

branched out into catering for village fiinctions,  

and her skill in lace making won her a national  

competition in the Daily Mail.  She continued  

working in her drapery business lean-to (shown 

overleaf), until her death in March 1937, 

when her daughter Eveline took over. 

 

Life progressed very well for the Walkers. 

 

Meanwhile, another couple, William and Mary Smith, who lived in a cob cottage next to the 

Hop Yard (opposite the former rectory in Rectory Lane), were bringing up their family. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

William Smith was also a wheel- 

wright, but there is no written  

evidence of him working 

with Thomas Walker.  

 

William and Mary had a total of  

seven children, with Edwin Samuel,  

known as Sam, being the second 

son.  Sam followed his father’s trade 

as a wheelwright.  He trained as a 

journeyman under George Hopkins 

whose workshop was next to the 

Old Post Office on The Green. 

 

At the outbreak of war in 1914 Ralph  

Walker, who by now was a trained 

baker, entered the RASC and 

continued in his trade. 

 

Meanwhile Sam Smith was not 

accepted for 

war service owing to an earlier leg injury, but  

he spent his time in Coventry, making 

wheels for military vehicles.  Sam stayed the 

week in Coventry, returning to Barby at the 



 

 

weekends on his cycle. 

 

The link between these two families, the 

Smiths and the Walkers, was made at this 

time upon the marriage of Eveline Walker to 

Sam Smith in 1916. 

 

In 1917 a third generation member of the combined families was born: Reginald Smith. 

 

In 1918 Ralph Walker returned from 

the army and resumed his trade  

within the family bakery. The 

Walkers’ wheelwright business and 

drapery were still flourishing.  This 

picture shows Ralph in the early  

1920s leaving the bakery with his  

deliveries and “co-driver”: his  

nephew Reg Smith.   This motorised 

means of delivery contrasts with  

Ralph’s wife Edith making local  

deliveries on foot with her bread  

barrow pulled behind. 

 

During the war years Thomas 

Walker had kept the bakery 

operating, but his mode of  

transport for deliveries was naturally the horse and cart.  Any repairs needed to wheels and  



 

 

 

cart would very conveniently have been carried out by himself. 

 

This picture shows Isobel Whitney collecting the 

Sunday roast from Walker’s bakery.  A charge of 3d  

was made.  No bread was baked on Sunday, but, as a  

service, the oven was lit so that this common village  

practice of roasting the Sunday joint could take place. 

Isobel later returned to Moulton where she lived well  

Into her nineties. 

 

Ralph and Edith ran the bakery business until 1930,  

making deliveries chiefly to Hillmorton and all places in  

between.  On the closure of the bakery, Ralph became an agricultural contractor and pig  

breeder, the pigs being penned in the polo ponies’ stable next to Hopthorne Farm. 

  

Sam Smith now worked with his father-in-law, but this  

invoice of 1922 suggests that he was in charge of the  

business, which at this time included both carpentry and  

undertaking. 

 

This vehicle was used for  

special journeys only,  

perhaps by”special”  

people. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These various businesses continued throughout the first half of the twentieth century, but as  

the demand for wooden wheels decreased, so the business diversified into other areas, for 

example tinning over thatched roofs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The shop attached to the family 

home on The Green continued, 

and served an important need 

in the village.  Today we talk 

about local produce, and this 

picture shows it at its freshest: 

when customers bought 

potatoes, they were dug directly 

from the garden. 

 

On leaving Lawrence Sheriff School in Rugby, Reg Smith began working on a large poultry 

farm owned by a Dr Harrison near Daventry Reservoir.  To further his knowledge of poultry, 

he attended Moulton Agricultural College for a year, then followed this with practical 

experience on a poultry breeding station near Stoke-on-Trent.  He returned to Dr Harrison’s, 

concentrating on breeding stock rather than egg production. 

 

At the outbreak of the Second World War, Reg was ready to serve his country in the 

Northamptonshire Yeomanry.  The war intervened in Reg’s plans for his future, and on his 

return, after a brief spell at poultry breeding, he went to British Thompson Houston (BTH) in 

Rugby where he remained for eight years. 

 

This photograph taken in 1946 

shows Grandfather Walker, Eveline, 

Reg and his son Paul.  This is the 

only photograph showing Reg’s 

mother, as she was usually on the 

other end of the camera.  Many of 

the photographs in this article were 

taken by Eveline with her Box 

Brownie.  What an accomplished 

photographer she was! 

 

Sam died in 1963, the same year as 

President Kennedy says Reg, bringing a second business to a close.  In 1954 Reg had taken 

over the lean-to shop which his mother Eveline had continued to run up until this time. 

 

 



 

 

The bakery, although it had not been used as such since 

1930, was eventually demolished in 1963 to make way for a 

new village shop.  This was firstly run by Reg and his wife 

Ivy, but later by his nephew Barry Smith who took over the 

business in 1986.  The business was sold in 1993 when a 

shop was established at the petrol station and Post Office in 

Rugby Road, and now the old shop lies empty.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2 Today (2022) the building still referred to as ‘The VG Shop’ by many villagers is almost invisible under its cover of 
wild plants. 


